
1

City of Kelowna
Public Hearing

AGENDA

Tuesday, July 16, 2013

6:00 pm

Council Chamber

City Hall, 1435 Water Street

Pages

1. Call to Order

THE CHAIR WILL CALL THE HEARING TO ORDER:

1.(a)The purpose of this Hearing is to consider certain bylaws which, if adopted, shall

amend Kelowna 2030 - Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 10500 and Zoning Bylaw

No. 8000.

(b)All persons who believe that their interest in property is affected by the proposed

bylaws shall be afforded a reasonable opportunity to be heard or to present written

submissions respecting matters contained in the bylaws that are the subject of this

hearing. This Hearing is open to the public and all representations to Council form part

of the public record. A live audio feed may be broadcast and recorded by Castanet.

(c)All information, correspondence, petitions or reports that have been received

concerning the subject bylaws have been made available to the public.The

correspondence and petitions received after July 2, 2013 (date of notification) are

available for inspection during the course of this hearing and are located on the

information table in the foyer of the Council Chamber.

(d)Council debate on the proposed bylaws is scheduled to take place during the

Regular Council meeting after the conclusion of this Hearing. It should be noted,

however, that for some items a final decision may not be able to be reached tonight.

(e)It must be emphasized that Council will not receive any representation from the



2

applicant or members of the public after conclusion of this Public Hearing.

2. Notification of Meeting

The City Clerk will provide information as to how the Hearing was publicized.

3. Individual Bylaw Submissions

3.1 Bylaw No. 10843 (OCP13-0006) & Bylaw No. 10844 (Z13-0007) - 3503 & 3505
Lakeshore Road, 602, 610, 620, 630 & 640 Swordy Road and 3510 Landie Road,
Northern Lights Land Development Corporation

5 - 59

To amend the Official Community Plan Future Land Use Designation from
Single/Two Unit Residential to Multiple Unit Residential - Low Density for the
property located at 3510 Landie Road, and to rezone all of the subject
properties from RU1 - Large Lot Housing zone to the RM3 - Low Density
Multiple Housing zone in order to accommodate a 31 unit proposed row
housing development; To include the property located at 3505 Lakeshore Road
to the proposal to amend the Official Community Plan Future Land Use
Designation from Single / Two Unit Residential to Multiple Unit Residential –
Low Density for the property located at 3510 Landie Road, and to rezone all of
the subject properties from RU1 – Large Lot Housing zone to the RM3 – Low
Density Multiple Housing zone in order to accommodate a 38 unit proposed
row housing development.

3.2 Bylaw No. 10860 (OCP13-0010) & Bylaw No. 10861 (Z13-0018), Various
Addresses on Central Avenue, Richter Street and Cambridge Avenue,
Provincial Housing Corporation

60 - 108

To amend the Official Community Plan Future Land Use Designation from
Multiple Unit Residential – Low Density to Multiple Unit Residential – Low
Density & Multiple Unit Residential – Medium Density, and to rezone the
subject properties from RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing & RM2 – Low Density Row
Housing to RM3 – Low Density Multiple Housing & RM5 – Medium Density
Multiple Housing. The project consists of a 50 unit market townhouse
development on a portion of subject properties and the 4 storey, 50 unit
seniors’ supportive housing apartment building with 20 family oriented
townhouses.

3.3 Bylaw No. 10862 (Z11-0051) - 2641 Longhill Road, Richard & Walter Denman 109 - 121

To amend the Zoning Bylaw from RR2 - Rural Residential 2 zone to RR2c -
Rural Residential 2 with Carriage House zone in order to legalize an existing
carriage house on the subject property.



3

4. Termination

5. Procedure on each Bylaw Submission

(a) Brief description of the application by City Staff (Land Use Management);

(b) The Chair will request that the City Clerk indicate all information,
correspondence, petitions or reports received for the record;

(c) The applicant is requested to make representation to Council regarding the
project and is encouraged to limit their presentation to 15 minutes;

(d) The Chair will call for representation from the public in attendance as follows:

 (i) The microphone at the public podium has been provided for any person(s) wishing
to make representation at the Hearing.

 (ii) The Chair will recognize ONLY speakers at the podium.

 (iii) Speakers are encouraged to limit their remarks to 5 minutes, however, if they
have additional information they may address Council again after all other members
of the public have been heard a first time.

(e) Once the public has had an opportunity to comment, the applicant is given an
opportunity to respond to any questions raised. The applicant is requested to keep
the response to a total of 10 minutes maximum.

(f) Questions by staff by members of Council must be asked before the Public Hearing
is closed and not during debate of the bylaw at the Regular Meeting, unless for
clarification.

(g) Final calls for respresentation (ask three times). Unless Council directs that the
Public Hearing on the bylaw in question be held open, the Chair shall state to the
gallery that the Public Hearing on the Bylaw is closed.

Note: Any applicant or member of the public may use visual aids (e.g. photographs,
sketches, slideshows, etc.) to assist in their presentation or questions. The computer
and ELMO document camera at the public podium are available. Please ask staff for
assistance prior to your item if required.



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: April 5th, 2013 

RIM No. 1250-30 

To: City Manager 

From: Land Use Management, Community Sustainability (AW) 

Application: OCP13-0006 / Z13-0007 Owner: 
Northern Lights Land 
Development Corporation, 
Inc. No. A0063828 

Address: 

3503 Lakeshore Road 

602, 610, 620, 630 & 640 Swordy Rd 

3510 Landie Road 

Applicant: 
Northern Lights Land 
Development Corporation, 
Inc. No. A0063828 

Subject: OCP Amendment & Rezoning Applications  

Existing OCP Designation: 
Single / Two Unit Residential & Multiple Unit Residential – Low 
Density 

Proposed OCP Designation: Multiple Unit Residential – Low Density 

Existing Zone: RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing 

Proposed Zone: RM3 – Low Density Multiple Housing 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

That Official Community Plan Bylaw Amendment No. OCP13-0006 to amend Map 19.1 of the 
Kelowna 2030 – Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 10500 by changing the Future Land Use 
designation of Lot 1, D.L. 134, ODYD, Plan 17308,located at 3510 Landie Road from Single / Two 
Unit Residential to Multiple Unit Residential – Low Density, as shown on Map “A” attached to the 
report of the Land Use Management Department dated April 5th, 2013, be considered by Council; 
 
AND THAT Council considers public consultation in accordance with Policy No. 367 to be 
appropriate consultation for the purpose of Section 879 of the Local Government Act, as outlined 
in the report of the Land Use Management Department dated April 5th, 2013; 
 
AND THAT Rezoning Application No. Z13-0007 to amend the City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 
8000 by changing the zoning classification of Lot 2, D.L. 134, ODYD, Plan 3232, located at 3503 
Lakeshore Road, Lot 1, D.L. 134, ODYD, Plan 3232, located at 602 Swordy Road, Lot 3, D.L. 134, 
ODYD, Plan 3232, located at 610 Swordy Road, Lot 4, D.L. 134, ODYD, Plan 3232, located at 620 
Swordy Road, Lot 5, D.L. 134, ODYD, Plan 3232, located at 630 Swordy Road, Lot 6, D.L. 134, 
ODYD, Plan 3232, located at 640 Swordy Road, Lot 1, D.L. 134, ODYD, Plan 17308, located at 

4



OCP13-0006 / Z13-0007 – Page 2 

 
 

3510 Landie Road from RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing to RM3 – Low Density Multiple Housing be 
considered by Council; 
 
AND THAT the Official Community Plan Bylaw Amendment Bylaw and the Zone Amending Bylaw 
be forwarded to a Public Hearing for further consideration; 
 
AND FURTHER THAT final adoption of the Zone Amending Bylaw be considered in conjunction 
with Council's consideration of a Development Permit and Development Variance Permit for the 
subject properties; 
 
AND FURTHER THAT final adoption of the Zone Amending Bylaw be considered subsequent to the 
requirements of the Development Engineering Branch being completed to their satisfaction; 
 
AND FURTHER THAT final adoption of the Zone Amending Bylaw be considered subsequent to the 
registration of a plan of subdivision to consolidate the properties. 

2.0 Purpose  

To amend the Official Community Plan Future Land Use Designation from Single / Two Unit 
Residential to Multiple Unit Residential – Low Density for the property located at 3510 Landie 
Road, and to rezone all of the subject properties from RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing to the RM3 – 
Low Density Multiple Housing zone in order to accommodate a 31 unit proposed row housing 
development. 

3.0 Land Use Management  

Land Use Management staff are supportive of the proposal, as it is seen to meet the objectives 
and supporting policies of the Official Community Plan (OCP). The RM3 – Low Density Multiple 
Housing zone is the appropriate zone and facilitates a form of housing needed to support the 
adjacent South Pandosy Urban Centre. The subject property is located across the street from the 
southern tip of the South Pandosy Urban Centre, along the Lakeshore Road bus route, within 
walking distance to Casorso Elementary School and various other amenities. The OCP amendment 
proposed for 3510 Landie is not of concern and allows for a more comprehensively planned 
project. Providing a ground oriented form of housing will help create more housing opportunities 
in this central location. As this is the transition area from the urban centre to the existing single 
family neighbourhood a sensitive interface is desired and this development is one of several 
anticipated to redevelop near the southern gateway to the Pandosy Town Centre. As such, the 
form and character of the project should acknowledge its proximity to the lake, Gyro Beach, the 
urban centre and the adjacent single family neighbourhood.    

The proposed variances are required in order to enable the developer to proceed, the variances 
are considered minor and acceptable for this scale of project. A Development & Development 
Variance Permit will be forwarded to Council at a later date. The applicant has consulted with 
neighbours as outlined in Council Policy No. 367, a summary of the consultation process is 
attached.    

4.0 Proposal 
4.1 Project Description 
The proposed development consists of a total of 31 dwelling units divided between 7 buildings; 2 
- 1 bedroom units, 4 - 2 bedroom units and 25 - 3 bedroom units. Principal vehicular access for 
the units is via a driveway from Swordy Road. Parking for the development is within the personal 
garages with an additional 8 visitor stalls spread throughout the site. Long term bicycle parking is 

5



OCP13-0006 / Z13-0007 – Page 3 

 
 

provided within the garages, and short term bicycle parking will be located on site. Pedestrian 
circulation is provided between buildings, through the property and a sidewalk will be provided 
along Lakeshore, Swordy and Landie Road. A 30m cross section is required along the length of the 
Lakeshore Road frontage to accommodate the future road cross section. A portion of the area 
will be secured through a road reserve which will allow the applicant to landscape and maintain 
this area until the road reserve area is required and triggered by the City. This will allow for a 
finished landscape frontage in the meantime instead of large leave strip along Lakeshore Road 
directly across from Gyro Beach. On that note, each frontage provides a strong pedestrian 
orientation, with main building entrances and patios facing the street. Staff have encourage the 
applicant to consider design elements for the corner of Lakeshore & Swordy that will help to 
further identify and address the most visible portion of the project. Such design elements serve 
to activate these building frontages with heightened levels of pedestrian activity. The buildings 
are representative of a more contemporary aesthetic, having flat roofs and clean building lines.  

The proposal compares to Zoning Bylaw No. 8000, based on the anticipated Text Amendments 
associated with application No. TA13-0003, as follows: 

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA RM3 ZONE REQUIREMENTS PROPOSAL 

Development Regulations 
Floor Area Ratio 0.80 0.743 

Site Coverage – Buildings 40% 36% 

Site Coverage– Bldgs & Driveways 60% 55% 

Height 
10.0m / 3 Storeys 

9.5m / 2.5 storeys - 7.5m from 
Single / Two Unit designation 

9.46m / 2.5 storeys 

Front Yard (w) 1.5m 4.5m 

Side Yard (n) 1.5m 4.5m 

Side Yard (s) 4.0m 
4.5m – Building 1, 5 & 6 

2.76m – Building 7 ¹ 

Rear Yard (e) 4.5m 4.5m 

Building Separation 3.0m 2.6m Between Buildings 4 & 5 ² 

Other Regulations 

Minimum Parking Requirements 
61 stalls total 

5 of which reserved for Visitor 
69 stalls 

61 stalls + 8 visitor stalls 

Bicycle Parking 
Class I: 16 stalls 
Class II: 4 stalls 

Class I: 25 stalls 
Class II: 4 stalls 

Private Open Space 805m2 650m2 ³ 

¹ To vary the side yard (south) setback from 4.0m required to 2.76m proposed.  
² To vary the building separation between buildings 4 & 5 from 3.0m required to 2.6m proposed.  
³ To vary the Private Open Space from 805m² required to 650m² proposed. 

4.2 Site Context 

The subject properties are located just south of the South Pandosy Urban Centre across 
Lakeshore Road from Gyro Beach. Adjacent land uses are as follows: 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing Vacant 

East RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing Residential 

South RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing Residential 
West P3 – Parks & Open Space Gyro Beach 

6



OCP13-0006 / Z13-0007 – Page 4 

 
 

Subject Property Map: 

5.0 Current Development Policies 

5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

Development Process 

Compact Urban Form.1 Develop a compact urban form that maximizes the use of existing 
infrastructure and contributes to energy efficient settlement patterns. This will be done by 
increasing densities (approximately 75 - 100 people and/or jobs located within a 400 metre 
walking distance of transit stops is required to support the level of transit service) through 
development, conversion, and re-development within Urban Centres (see Map 5.3) in particular 
and existing areas as per the provisions of the Generalized Future Land Use Map 4.1. 

Ground-Oriented Housing.2 Encourage all multi-unit residential buildings in neighbourhoods with 
schools and parks to contain ground-oriented units with 2 or more bedrooms to provide a family 
                                                      
1 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.2.3 (Development Process Chapter). 
2 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.23.1 (Development Process Chapter). 

7



OCP13-0006 / Z13-0007 – Page 5 

 
 

housing choice within multi-unit rental or ownership markets. High density residential projects in 
the Downtown area are encouraged to include a ground-oriented housing component, especially 
where such can be provided on non-arterial and non-collector streets.’ 

6.0 Technical Comments 

6.1 Building & Permitting Department 

 Demolition permits are required for any existing building(s). 

 Development Cost Charges (DCC’s) are required to be paid prior to issuance of any 
Building Permit(s) for new construction 

 Size and location of all signage to be clearly defined as part of the development 
permit 

 A minimum Geodetic Elevation of 343.66 meters is required for all habitable spaces 
including garage space. 

 A Building Code analysis is required for the structure(s) at time of building permit 
applications, but the following items may affect the form and character of the 
building(s): 

o The British Columbia Building Code (BCBC) may define Buildings 2 & 3 as well 
as buildings 4 & 5 as a single structure unless the use of a firewall(s) is to be 
utilized. A complete building code analysis would be required to be reviewed 
prior to complete comments being provided. 

o Spatial calculations for between buildings 2 & 3 as well as buildings 4 & 5 to be 
reviewed prior to the release of the development permit.  

 Full Plan check for Building Code related issues will be done at time of Building Permit 
applications 

6.2 Development Engineering Department 

See Attached. 

6.3 Fire Department 

Fire department access, fire flows, and hydrants as per the BC Building Code and City of 
Kelowna Subdivision Bylaw #7900. The Subdivision Bylaw requires a minimum of 150ltr/sec 
flow. The access road is to be a minimum of 6M in width with no parking signs provided 
along the roadway. Additional comments will be required at the building permit 
applications. 

6.4 Fortis BC - Gas 

Please be advised FortisBC has no concerns with the above mentioned referral. 

7.0 Application Chronology  

Date of Application Received: February 1st, 2013  
Public Consultation & Notification:  April 3rd, 2013 

The applicant consulted with neighbours within 50m of the proposed development as noted in 
Council Policy No. 367.  

 

8



OCP13-0006 / Z13-0007 – Page 6 

 
 

Report prepared by: 

     
Alec Warrender, Land Use Planner  
 
 

Reviewed by:    Danielle Noble, Manager, Urban Land Use 
 

Approved for Inclusion  D. Gilchrist, A. General Manager, Community Sustainability 

Attachments: 

Map A 
Subject Property Map 
Site Plan  
Elevations & Renderings 
Development Engineering Requirements 
Neighbourhood Consultation Summary 

9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: June 14th, 2013 

RIM No. 1250-30 

To: City Manager 

From: Land Use Management, Community Sustainability (AW) 

Application: OCP13-0006 / Z13-0007 Owner: 
Timothy G. Pinnell and 
Judith A. Kopan 

Address: 

 

3505 Lakeshore Road 

 

Applicant: 
Northern Lights Land 
Development Corporation, 
Inc. No. A0063828 

Subject: Supplemental Report - OCP Amendment & Rezoning Applications  

Existing OCP Designation: 
Single / Two Unit Residential & Multiple Unit Residential – Low 
Density 

Proposed OCP Designation: Multiple Unit Residential – Low Density 

Existing Zone: RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing 

Proposed Zone: RM3 – Low Density Multiple Housing 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Council receive for information the Supplemental Report from the Land Use Management 
Department dated June 14th, 2013; 
 
AND THAT Official Community Plan Bylaw Amendment Application No. OCP13-0006 (BL10843) be 
amended at 1st reading to amend Map 4.1 of the Kelowna 2030 – Official Community Plan Bylaw 
No. 10500 by changing the Future Land Use designation of Lot A, D.L. 134, ODYD, Plan 8219 
Except Plan 17308, located at 3505 Lakeshore Road from Single / Two Unit Residential to Multiple 
Unit Residential – Low Density, as shown on Map “A” attached to the report of the Land Use 
Management Department dated June 14th, 2013, be considered by Council; 
 
AND FURTHER THAT the Rezoning Application No. Z13-0007 (BL10844) be amended at 1st reading 
to amend the City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 by changing the zoning classification of Lot 
A, D.L. 134, ODYD, Plan 8219 Except Plan 17308, located at 3505 Lakeshore Road from RU6 – Two 
Dwelling Housing to RM3 – Low Density Multiple Housing be considered by Council; 
 
 

32



OCP13-0006 / Z13-0007 – Page 2 

 
 

2.0 Purpose  

To include the property located at 3505 Lakeshore Road to the proposal to amend the Official 
Community Plan Future Land Use Designation from Single / Two Unit Residential to Multiple Unit 
Residential – Low Density for the property located at 3510 Landie Road, and to rezone all of the 
subject properties from RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing to the RM3 – Low Density Multiple Housing 
zone in order to accommodate a 38 unit proposed row housing development. 

3.0 Land Use Management  

Land Use Management staff are supportive of adding the additional parcel to the proposal, as it 
allows the proposal to be more comprehensively planned and programmed for the site.  The RM3 
– Low Density Multiple Housing zone is the appropriate zone and facilitates a form of housing 
needed to support the adjacent South Pandosy Urban Centre. The subject properties are located 
across the street from the southern tip of the South Pandosy Urban Centre, along the Lakeshore 
Road bus route, within walking distance to Casorso Elementary School and various other 
amenities. The OCP amendment proposed for 3510 Landie and 3505 Lakeshore Road is not of 
concern and allows for a more comprehensively designed project. Providing a ground oriented 
form of housing will help create a diverse mix of housing opportunities in this central location. As 
this is the transition area from the urban centre to the existing single family neighbourhood, a 
sensitive interface is desired and this development is one of several anticipated to redevelop 
near the southern gateway to the Pandosy Town Centre. As such, the form and character of the 
project should acknowledge its proximity to the lake, Gyro Beach, urban centre and the adjacent 
single family neighbourhood.   The applicant has consulted with neighbours as outlined in Council 
Policy No. 367, and a summary of the consultation process is attached.    

The proposed variances are required given the lot configuration, however are considered 
acceptable for this scale of project. Favorably, the revised project has reduced the variances 
allowing for a more suitable layout. A Development Permit & Development Variance Permit will 
be forwarded to Council at a later date.  

4.0 Proposal 
4.1 Project Description 

The amended project has increased the number of units from 31 to a total of 38 dwelling units 
divided between 9 buildings, 18 - 2 bedroom units and 20 - 3 bedroom units. Principal vehicular 
access for the units is via a driveway from Swordy Road. Parking for the development is within 
the personal garages with an additional 8 visitor stalls spread throughout the site. Long term 
bicycle parking is provided within the garages, and short term bicycle parking will be located on 
site. Pedestrian circulation is provided between buildings, through the property and a sidewalk 
will be provided along Lakeshore, Swordy and Landie Road. A 30m cross section is required along 
the length of the Lakeshore Road frontage to accommodate the future road cross section. A 
portion of the area will be secured through a road reserve which will allow the applicant to 
landscape and maintain this area until the road reserve area is required and triggered by the 
City. This will allow for a finished landscape frontage in the meantime instead of large leave strip 
along Lakeshore Road directly across from Gyro Beach. On that note, each frontage provides a 
strong pedestrian orientation, with main building entrances and patios facing the street. Staff 
have encouraged the applicant to consider design elements for the corner of Lakeshore & Swordy 
that will help to further identify and anchor the most visible portion of the project. Such design 
elements serve to activate these building frontages, with heightened levels of pedestrian activity 
and visual interest. The buildings are representative of a more contemporary aesthetic, having 
flat roofs and clean building lines.  

  

33



OCP13-0006 / Z13-0007 – Page 3 

 
 

 

The proposal compares to Zoning Bylaw No. 8000, as follows: 

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA RM3 ZONE REQUIREMENTS PROPOSAL 

Development Regulations 
Floor Area Ratio 0.80 0.743 

Site Coverage – Buildings 40% 36% 

Site Coverage– Bldgs & Driveways 60% 55% 

Height 
10.0m / 3 Storeys 

9.5m / 2.5 storeys - 7.5m from 
Single / Two Unit designation 

9.46m / 2.5 storeys 

Front Yard (w) 1.5m 4.5m 

Side Yard (n) 1.5m 4.5m 

Side Yard (s) 4.0m 2.29m¹ 

Rear Yard (e) 7.5m 3.48m² 

Building Separation 3.0m 3.0m 

Other Regulations 

Minimum Parking Requirements 72 stalls total 
87 stalls 

77 stalls + 10 visitor stalls 

Bicycle Parking 
Class I: 19 stalls 
Class II: 4 stalls 

Class I: 38 stalls 
Class II: 4 stalls 

Private Open Space 950m2 3000m2 
¹ To vary the side yard (south) setback from 4.0m required to 2.76m proposed.  
² To vary the rear yard setback from 7.5m required to 3.48m proposed. 

4.2 Site Context 

Subject Property Map: 

34



OCP13-0006 / Z13-0007 – Page 4 

 
 

The subject properties are located just south of the South Pandosy Urban Centre across 
Lakeshore Road from Gyro Beach. Adjacent land uses are as follows: 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing Vacant 

East RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing Residential 

South RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing Residential 
West P3 – Parks & Open Space Gyro Beach 

5.0 Current Development Policies 

5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

Development Process 

Compact Urban Form.1 Develop a compact urban form that maximizes the use of existing 
infrastructure and contributes to energy efficient settlement patterns. This will be done by 
increasing densities (approximately 75 - 100 people and/or jobs located within a 400 metre 
walking distance of transit stops is required to support the level of transit service) through 
development, conversion, and re-development within Urban Centres (see Map 5.3) in particular 
and existing areas as per the provisions of the Generalized Future Land Use Map 4.1. 

Ground-Oriented Housing.2 Encourage all multi-unit residential buildings in neighbourhoods with 
schools and parks to contain ground-oriented units with 2 or more bedrooms to provide a family 
housing choice within multi-unit rental or ownership markets. High density residential projects in 
the Downtown area are encouraged to include a ground-oriented housing component, especially 
where such can be provided on non-arterial and non-collector streets.’ 

6.0 Technical Comments 

6.1 Building & Permitting Department 

 Demolition permits are required for any existing building(s). 

 Development Cost Charges (DCC’s) are required to be paid prior to issuance of any 
Building Permit(s) for new construction 

 Size and location of all signage to be clearly defined as part of the development 
permit 

 A minimum Geodetic Elevation of 343.66 meters is required for all habitable spaces 
including garage space. 

 A Building Code analysis is required for the structure(s) at time of building permit 
applications, but the following items may affect the form and character of the 
building(s): 

o The British Columbia Building Code (BCBC) may define Buildings 2 & 3 as well 
as buildings 4 & 5 as a single structure unless the use of a firewall(s) is to be 
utilized. A complete building code analysis would be required to be reviewed 
prior to complete comments being provided. 

o Spatial calculations for between buildings 2 & 3 as well as buildings 4 & 5 to be 
reviewed prior to the release of the development permit.  

 Full Plan check for Building Code related issues will be done at time of Building Permit 
applications 

                                                
1 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.2.3 (Development Process Chapter). 
2 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.23.1 (Development Process Chapter). 

35



OCP13-0006 / Z13-0007 – Page 5 

 
 

6.2 Development Engineering Department 

See Attached. 

6.3 Fire Department 

Fire department access, fire flows, and hydrants as per the BC Building Code and City of 
Kelowna Subdivision Bylaw #7900. The Subdivision Bylaw requires a minimum of 150ltr/sec 
flow. The access road is to be a minimum of 6M in width with no parking signs provided 
along the roadway. Additional comments will be required at the building permit 
applications. 

6.4 Fortis BC - Gas 

Please be advised FortisBC has no concerns with the above mentioned referral. 

7.0 Application Chronology  

Date of Application Received: February 1st, 2013  
Public Consultation & Notification:  April 3rd, 2013 & May 3rd, 2013 

The applicant consulted with neighbours within 50m of the proposed development as noted in 
Council Policy No. 367.  

 

Report prepared by: 

     
Alec Warrender, Land Use Planner  
 
 

Reviewed by:    Danielle Noble, Urban Planning Manager 
 

Approved for Inclusion  D. Gilchrist, GM of Community Planning & Real Estate 
Division 

Attachments: 

Map A 
Subject Property Map 
Site Plan  
Elevations & Renderings 
Development Engineering Requirements 
2nd  Neighbourhood Consultation Summary 

36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: June 7th, 2013 

RIM No. 1250-30 

To: City Manager 

From: Land Use Management, Community Sustainability (AW) 

Application: OCP13-0010 / Z13-0018 Owner: 
Provincial Rental Housing Corporation, 
Inc. No. BC0052129 

Address: 

602-650, 678, 668 Central Avenue 

648-650, 668-670, 680-692  Richter Street 

603-607, 609-611, 621-631, 661-663, 671-
673, 681-689, 641 Cambridge Avenue 

Applicant: Norr Architects Planners 

Subject: OCP Amendment & Rezoning Applications  

Existing OCP Designation: Multiple Unit Residential – Low Density 

Proposed OCP Designation: 
Multiple Unit Residential – Low Density & Multiple Unit 
Residential – Medium Density 

Existing Zones: RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing & RM2 – Low Density Row Housing 

Proposed Zones: RM3 – Low Density Multiple Housing & RM5 – Medium Density 
Multiple Housing 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

That Official Community Plan Bylaw Amendment No. OCP13-0010 to amend Map 19.1 of the 
Kelowna 2030 – Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 10500 by changing the Future Land Use 
designation of Lot A, District Lot 9, ODYD, Plan 13927, located at 602-650 Central Avenue, Lot 1, 
District Lot 9, ODYD, Plan 4317, located at 603-607 Cambridge Avenue, Lot 2, District Lot 9, 
ODYD, Plan 4317, located at 609-611 Cambridge Avenue, Lot 3, District Lot 9, ODYD, Plan 4317, 
located at 621-631 Cambridge Avenue, Lot 1, District Lot 9, ODYD, Plan 7822, located at 661-663 
Cambridge Avenue, Lot 2, District Lot 9, ODYD, Plan 7822, located at 671-673 Cambridge Avenue, 
Lot 3, District Lot 9, ODYD, Plan 7822, located at 681-689 Cambridge Avenue, Lot 4, District Lot 
9, ODYD, Plan 7822, located at 648-650 Richter Street, Lot 5, District Lot 9, ODYD, Plan 7822, 
located at 668-670 Richter Street, Lot 6, District Lot 9, ODYD, Plan 7822, located at 680-692 
Richter Street, Lot 13, District Lot 9, ODYD, Plan 4317, located at 678 Central Avenue, Lot 4, 
District Lot 9, ODYD, Plan 4317, located at 641 Cambridge Avenue, Lot 14, District Lot 9, ODYD, 
Plan 4317, located at 668 Central Avenue from Multiple Unit Residential – Low Density to Multiple 
Unit Residential – Low Density & Multiple Unit Residential – Medium Density, as shown on Map “A” 
attached to the Report of the Land Use Management Department dated March 8th, 2013, be 
considered by Council; 

59



OCP13-0010 / Z13-0018 – Page 2 

 
 

 
AND THAT Council considers the applicant’s April 20th, 2013 Public Involvement Report and 
documented Public Open Houses to be appropriate consultation for the purpose of Section 879 of 
the Local Government Act, as outlined in the Report of the Land Use Management Department 
dated June 7th, 2013; 
 
AND THAT Rezoning Application No. Z13-0018 to amend the City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 
8000 by changing the zoning classification of Lot A, District Lot 9, ODYD, Plan 13927, located at 
602-650 Central Avenue, Lot 1, District Lot 9, ODYD, Plan 4317, located at 603-607 Cambridge 
Avenue, Lot 2, District Lot 9, ODYD, Plan 4317, located at 609-611 Cambridge Avenue, Lot 3, 
District Lot 9, ODYD, Plan 4317, located at 621-631 Cambridge Avenue, Lot 1, District Lot 9, 
ODYD, Plan 7822, located at 661-663 Cambridge Avenue, Lot 2, District Lot 9, ODYD, Plan 7822, 
located at 671-673 Cambridge Avenue, Lot 3, District Lot 9, ODYD, Plan 7822, located at 681-689 
Cambridge Avenue, Lot 4, District Lot 9, ODYD, Plan 7822, located at 648-650 Richter Street, Lot 
5, District Lot 9, ODYD, Plan 7822, located at 668-670 Richter Street, Lot 6, District Lot 9, ODYD, 
Plan 7822, located at 680-692 Richter Street, Lot 13, District Lot 9, ODYD, Plan 4317, located at 
678 Central Avenue, Lot 4, District Lot 9, ODYD, Plan 4317, located at 641 Cambridge Avenue, 
Lot 14, District Lot 9, ODYD, Plan 4317, located at 668 Central Avenue from RU6 – Two Dwelling 
Housing & RM2 – Low Density Row Housing to RM3 – Low Density Multiple Housing & RM5 – Medium 
Density Multiple Housing be considered by Council; 
 
AND THAT the Official Community Plan Bylaw Amendment and the Zone Amending Bylaw be 
forwarded to a Public Hearing for further consideration; 
 
AND FURTHER THAT final adoption of the Zone Amending Bylaw be considered in conjunction 
with Council's consideration of a Development Permit and Development Variance Permit on the 
subject properties; 
 
AND FURTHER THAT final adoption of the Zone Amending Bylaw be considered subsequent to the 
requirements of the Development Engineering Branch being completed to their satisfaction; 
 
AND FURTHER THAT final adoption of the Zone Amending Bylaw be considered subsequent to the 
submission of a plan of subdivision to consolidate the properties. 

2.0 Purpose  

To amend the Official Community Plan Future Land Use Designation from Multiple Unit 
Residential – Low Density to Multiple Unit Residential – Low Density & Multiple Unit Residential – 
Medium Density, and to rezone the subject properties from RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing & RM2 – 
Low Density Row Housing to RM3 – Low Density Multiple Housing & RM5 – Medium Density Multiple 
Housing. The project consists of a 50 unit market townhouse development on a portion of subject 
properties and the 4 storey, 50 unit seniors’ supportive housing apartment building with 20 family 
oriented townhouses.  

3.0 Land Use Management  

The Pleasantvale redevelopment concept proposes to rezone the subject properties from RM2 – 
Low Density Row Housing and RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing to RM3 – Low Density Multiple Housing 
and RM5 – Medium Density Multiple Housing. The RM3 rezoning complies with the Official 
Community Plan future land use designation but the area proposed for the RM5 portion of the 

60



OCP13-0010 / Z13-0018 – Page 3 

 
 

project requires an OCP amendment to the Multiple Unit Residential – Medium Density 
designation. The OCP amendment is requested to accommodate the senior’s apartment building. 
 
The applicant undertook a well organized public consultation process in order to engage the 
neighbourhood and shape the project in a manner that best suited the surrounding context. The 
main outcome was how to appropriately deal with the additional height introduced into the 
neighbourhood by the seniors apartment building. This process resulted in a proposal that has 
successfully placed the height and massing of the seniors apartment building in the centre of the 
parcel with the goal of mitigating any negative impacts associated with the height by stepping 
back the top storey from Richter Street. The concept also has a large majority of the street 
frontages line with 2 ½ storey buildings.  
 
Staff are supportive of the proposed development. While the project will result in a physical 
change to the neighbourhood new seniors and family oriented housing will be provided on site 
renewing an important form of housing. The existing structures are nearing the end of their 
lifespan and providing new housing options for seniors is an important objective of the Official 
Community Plan. Should Council support the land use, a Development Permit and Development 
Variance Permit will be submitted for Council consideration at a later date. 

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Background 

The subject properties create a 1.26 hectare city block located in the North End bounded by 
Central Avenue, Cambridge Avenue, Kingsway Avenue and Richter Street. The non-profit 
Pleasantvale Homes Society has been operating 50 low income seniors’ housing units on most of 
the site for 55 years. The remainder of the block consists of two single family lots and the 
laneway owned by the City of Kelowna. There is one remaining single family lot privately owned 
that does not form part of this application. The Pleasantvale Housing Society has been 
investigating redevelopment opportunities to maintain the seniors housing stock for a number of 
years. In 2009 the properties were transferred to BC Housing to help the project move forward 
and achieve several key objectives.  
 
The block, which has long been designated for redevelopment in anticipation of new senior’s 
housing, is firmly surrounded by Single / Two Unit Residential designated properties. The project 
is located at the base of Knox Mountain Park and near Sutherland Bay in an ideal residential 
location where residents would continue to have convenient access to park amenities in a quiet 
residential setting. One of the properties in the block is under private ownership and will not be 
rezoned as part of this application process. The one property that remains under private 
ownership would ideally be consolidated into the project at some point in the future to provide 
for a more comprehensive approach to redevelopment. The RM5 portion of the project can 
proceed as it does not involve this property, the RM3 layout would be adjusted accordingly. 

4.2 Project Description 

The project features three different forms of housing organized into one comprehensively 
planned development. Surface parking is provided for the apartment building and the affordable 
townhome units while the market townhomes will likely have individual garages. One access 
point will be provided from Richter Street and two access points will be located on Kingsway. The 
key site planning characteristics include: 

61



OCP13-0010 / Z13-0018 – Page 4 

 
 

 Except for a small portion of the Richter Street frontage the streets will be fronted with 
2½ storey townhomes; 

 4-storey apartment building is setback from north and south neighbours 

 Apartment building steps back after 3rd storey along Richter Street frontage; 

 Linear paths bisect the site with internal walkways between townhomes; 

 Seniors’ building has a small open yard space to the south of the building. 

Site Planning 
The subject properties create a 1.26 hectare city block located in the North End bounded by 
Central Avenue, Cambridge Avenue, Kingsway Avenue and Richter Street. The site programming 
includes 50 affordable seniors units in a 4 storey apartment building, 20 affordable rental 
townhouse units directed at families in two 10 unit buildings and 50 market townhouse units in a 
series of buildings. Surface parking is provided for the apartment building and the affordable 
townhome units while the market townhomes will likely have individual garages. One access 
point will be provided from Richter Street and two access points will be located on Kingsway. 
Circulation has been handled entirely onsite and the each of the buildings are oriented towards 
the street helping to maintain the residential character of the area. The senior’s apartment 
building has been strategically located with the bulk of the building surrounded by townhomes 
and the fourth storey stepped back to reduce the massing along Richter Street.  
 
Variances  
A few minor variances are required in order to accommodate the proposed development, they 
have been kept to a minimum to limit the impact on the neighbouring properties. Each form of 
development requires a site coverage variance; the RM3 layout results in a 63.2% site coverage 
for buildings, driveways and parking where 60% is permitted and the RM5 component has a site 
coverage for buildings of 40.7% where 40% is permitted. The two other variances are setback 
variances where there are no anticipated negative impacts for neighbouring residents.  
 
The project compares to Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 as follows: 

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA 
RM3 ZONE 

REQUIREMENTS 
RM3 PROPOSAL 

RM5 ZONE 
REQUIREMENTS 

RM5 PROPOSAL 

Development Regulations 
Floor Area Ratio 0.75 0.75 1.1 1.09 

Height 10.0m / 3 Storeys 9.5m / 2 ½ Storeys 18.0m / 4.5 Storeys 13.0m / 4 Storeys 

Front Yard 4.0m 4.5m 
6.0m 

3.0m entry projection 
6.0m 

3.3m entry projection* 

Side Yard (south) 1.5m 4.5m 4.5m 4.5m 

Side Yard (north) 1.5m 4.5m 4.5m 4.5m 

Rear Yard 7.5m 9.0m 9.0m 1.0m* 

Site Cov - Buildings 
Buildings, driveways 

& Parking 

40% 
60% 

33.6% 
63.2%* 

40% 
65% 

40.7%* 
57.2% 

Other Regulations 
Minimum Parking 

Requirements 
100 stalls 

7 Visitor Stalls 
100 stalls 

7 Visitor Stalls 
24 stalls 

 
24 stalls 

Bicycle Parking 
Class I: 25 spaces 
Class II: 5 spaces 

Class I: 50 spaces 
Class II: 1 spaces 

Class I: 35 spaces 
Class II: 7 spaces 

Class I: 35 spaces 
Class II: 7 spaces 

62



OCP13-0010 / Z13-0018 – Page 5 

 
 

* Vary the site coverage for buildings, driveways and parking on the RM3 site from 60% permitted to 63.2% proposed.  

* Vary permitted projection into a entrance canopy on the RM5 site from 3.0m permitted to 3.3m proposed. 

* Vary the rear yard setback for the RM5 site from 9.0m required to 1.0m proposed. 

* Vary the site coverage for buildings on the RM5 site from 40% permitted to 40.7% proposed. 

4.3 Site Context 

Subject Property Map: 

 

The subject property is located in the North End area of town in a predominantly single family 
neighbourhood. Adjacent land uses are as follows: 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing Residential 

East RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing Residential 

South RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing Residential 
West RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing Residential 

5.0 Current Development Policies 

5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

Staff recommends that the applicants April 20th, 2013 Public Involvement Report and 
documented Public Open Houses be considered appropriate consultation for the purpose of 
Section 879 of the Local Government Act, and that the process is sufficiently early and does not 

63



OCP13-0010 / Z13-0018 – Page 6 

 
 

need to be further ongoing in this case. Furthermore, additional consultation with the Regional 
District of Central Okanagan is not required in this case. 
 
5.2   Current Development Policies - Kelowna Official Community Plan 2030 (OCP)  
5.2.1 Development Process (Chapter 5) 
 

Ensure opportunities are available for greater use of active transportation and transit 
to: improve community health; reduce greenhouse gas emissions; and increase 
resilience in the face of higher energy prices (Objective 5.10) 
 
Maximize Pedestrian / Cycling Connectivity. Require that pedestrian and cyclist 
movement and infrastructure be addressed in the review and approval of all City and 
private sector developments, including provision of sidewalks and trails and recognition of 
frequently used connections and informal pedestrian routes.  
Transit Infrastructure. Require that transit service needs to be integrated into 
community designs and development proposals to optimize access to transit service and 
incorporate essential infrastructure on transit routes identified. 

 
5.2.2 Social Sustainability (Chapter 10) 
 
Objective 10.1 Promote social well-being and quality of life by providing facilities and 
services for all community members. 
 
Objective 10.3 Support the creation of affordable and safe rental, non-market and/or special 
needs housing. 
 
Housing Availability (Policy .1). Support the provision of housing for all members of the 
community, including those in core housing need or requiring special needs housing (transitional, 
age in place, emergency or shelter). 

6.0 Technical Comments 

6.1 Building & Permitting Department 

 Demolition permits are required for any existing building(s). 

 Development Cost Charges (DCC’s) are required to be paid prior to issuance of any 
Building Permit(s) for new construction. 

 This is an area with a potentially high ground water table, a geotechnical engineer will 
be required to establish a safe building elevation and safe bearing capacities. 

 Full Plan check for Building Code related issues will be done at time of Building Permit 
applications. 

6.2 Development Engineering Department 

See Attached. 

6.3 Fire Department 

Fire department access, fire flows, and hydrants as per the BC Building Code and City of 
Kelowna Subdivision Bylaw #7900. The Subdivision Bylaw #7900 requires a minimum of 
150ltr/sec fire flows. Primary emergency access is from Richter St. Additional comments 
will be required at the building permit application. 

64



OCP13-0010 / Z13-0018 – Page 7 

 
 

6.4 Fortis BC – Gas 

FortisBC gas division has reviewed the above mentioned referral and there is an existing 
60mm DP gas main running down the lane will need to abandoned/altered/renewed to 
accommodate proposed new structures. Right-of-way may also be required. 

6.5 Public Health Inspector 

See Attached. 

7.0 Application Chronology  

Date of Application Received: April 14th, 2013  
 

Report prepared by: 

     
Alec Warrender, Land Use Planner  
 
 

Reviewed by:    Danielle Noble, Manager, Urban Land Use 
 

Approved for Inclusion  D. Gilchrist, A. General Manager, Community Sustainability 

Attachments: 

Map A 
Subject Property Map 
Pleasantvale context 
Apartment Building Renderings 
Applicant’s Letter of Rationale 
Public Involvement Report 
Interior Health Letter 
Development Engineering Requirements 
 

65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: June 6, 2013 

RIM No. 1250-30 

To: City Manager 

From: Land Use Management, Community Sustainability (JM) 

Application: Z11-0051 Owners: Richard & Walter Denman 

Address: 2641 Longhill Road Applicant: Richard Denman 

Subject: Rezoning Application   

Existing OCP Designation: S2RES – Single / Two Unit Residential 

Existing Zone: RR2 – Rural Residential 2 

Proposed Zone: RR2c – Rural Residential 2 with Carriage House 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Rezoning Application No. Z11-0051 to amend the City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 by 
changing the zoning classification of Lot 2, Section 34, Township 26, ODYD, Plan 39180, located 
on 2641 Longhill Road, Kelowna, BC from the RR2 – Rural Residential 2 zone to the RR2c – Rural 
Residential 2 with Carriage House zone be considered by Council; 
 
AND THAT the Zone Amending Bylaw be forwarded to a Public Hearing for further consideration; 
 
AND FURTHER THAT final adoption of the Zone Amending Bylaw be considered subsequent to the 
requirements of the Glenmore-Ellison Improvement District  being completed to their 
satisfaction; 
 
AND THAT the suite be eligible for final occupancy prior to final adoption of the zone; 
 
AND FURTHER THAT final adoption of the Zone Amending Bylaw be considered following 
registration of a Section 219 restrictive covenant on title limiting the number of bedrooms, 
inclusive of all buildings and structures, to a total of three (3), for wastewater purposes. 

2.0 Purpose   

To amend the Zoning Bylaw from RR2 - Rural Residential 2 zone to RR2c - Rural Residential 2 with 
Carriage House zone in order to legalize an existing carriage house on the subject property. 
 
 

108



Z11-0051 – Page 2 

 
 

3.0 Land Use Management   

Land Use Management staff are generally supportive of the proposed development, as it is seen 
to further the objectives of the Official Community Plan (OCP) respecting the provision of a 
variety of housing forms at various income levels.  

Nevertheless, when situated in urban areas, carriage houses achieve many of the objectives of 
the OCP by providing additional density and diversity in a manner that is sensitive to existing 
established neighbourhoods. In developed areas, this additional density makes more efficient use 
of infrastructure. However, it is less clear that the objectives of the OCP are being met where 
carriage houses are developed in very rural or agricultural areas. In these areas, though 
supported by policy, it should be recognized that additional residential units place a greater 
burden on limited infrastructure, and increase the likelihood that residents will be dependent on 
single occupant vehicle use. 

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Background 

In 2010, the proponent made application for a building permit for an existing accessory building 
on the subject property. At that time, it was discovered that the accessory building was being 
occupied illegally and operated as a carriage house. The proponent was advised that a rezoning 
would be required to legalize the use. 

The application has been subject to several delays related to family health concerns of the 
applicant, and to a major fire that occurred on the property, causing significant damage. 

4.2 Project Description 

The applicant proposes to legalize an existing carriage house on the subject property. The 
carriage house was a former accessory building that was converted into a single storey, one-
bedroom dwelling being approximately 45m2 in area.  

The carriage house is situated at the southwest corner of the subject property, and is linked to 
both the principal dwelling and to the existing paved driveway via a lit concrete staircase. 
Parking for the carriage house is provided in the paved driveway area.  

The carriage house is at a grade approximately 3 metres higher than that of the principal 
dwelling, which provides a considerable degree of privacy. Private open space surrounds the 
carriage house and features a wooden deck. 

The subject property is serviced by the Glenmore-Ellison Improvement District (GEID) for water, 
and is on septic. The existing septic system was designed to accommodate a maximum of three 
(3) bedrooms. According to the applicant, the existing principal dwelling contains two bedrooms, 
and the carriage house contains only one bedroom. As a condition of approval, the applicant has 
agreed to register on title a restrictive covenant limiting the total number of bedrooms on the 
parcel to three (3). Should the total number of bedrooms exceed this limit, a full assessment by a 
Certified Wastewater Practitioner will be triggered. 

A Development Permit to evaluate the form and character of the proposed carriage house 
conversion is required and will be executed at a staff level. 

4.3 Site Context 

The subject 0.4ha property is situated on the south side of Longhill Road partway between Rifle 
and Sexsmith Roads in the Glenmore-Clifton-Dilworth sector. The parcel is located within a rural 

109



Z11-0051 – Page 3 

 
 

residential cluster that is not within the Agricultural Land Reserve (ALR), but surrounded largely 
by agricultural development in the ALR. The property is within the Permanent Growth Boundary. 

The lot presently contains one principal dwelling and an accessory building. Within the rural 
residential cluster, the subject property would be the first to develop a carriage house.  

Specifically, adjacent land uses are as follows: 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North RR3 – Rural Residential 3 Large lot single dwelling housing 

East RR2 – Rural Residential 2 Large lot single dwelling housing 

South RR2 – Rural Residential 2 Large lot single dwelling housing 

West RR2 – Rural Residential 2 Large lot single dwelling housing 

 

Subject Property Map: 2641 Longhill Road 

 

4.4 Zoning Analysis Table   

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA RR2c ZONE REQUIREMENTS PROPOSAL 

Existing Lot/Subdivision Regulations 
Lot Area 4,000 m2 4,000 m2 

Lot Width 36.0 m 71.43 m 

Lot Depth 30.0 m 56.0 m 

Development Regulations 
Height (principal dwelling) 9.5 m (2 ½ storeys) 1 storey 

Height (carriage house) 4.5 m (1 ½ storeys) 1 storedy (~3.5m) 

110



Z11-0051 – Page 4 

 
 

Front Yard 6.0 m exceeds 

Side Yard (west) 3.0 m 5.67 m 

Side Yard (east) 3.0 m Exceeds 

Rear Yard 3.0 m 8.63 m 

Other Regulations 
Minimum Parking Requirements 3 stalls exceeds 

Private Open Space 30 m2 exceeds 

5.0 Current Development Policies   

5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

The Official Community Plan (OCP) Future Land Use designation for the subject property is S2RES 
– Single / Two Unit Residential. 

6.0 Technical Comments   

6.1 Building & Permitting Department 

1) Development Cost Charges (DCC’s) are required to be paid prior to issuance of any 
Building Permits. 

2) Operable bedroom windows required as per the 2006 edition of the British Columbia 
Building Code (BCBC 06). 

3) Full Plan check for Building Code related issues will be done at time of Building Permit 
applications. 

6.2 Development Engineering Department 

See attached Development Engineering Memorandum, dated July 8, 2011. 

6.3 Bylaw Services 

Bylaw Services has an open Service Request for failure to obtain building permits and a possible 
suite. The Service Request was generated on April 29, 2011 and remains open to date. 

6.4 Fire Department 

An unobstructed and easily distinguishable fire-fighter access path, of 1100 mm, from the street 
to the back of the property line as well to the secondary detached suite main entrance is 
required.  

If a fence is ever constructed between the dwellings an 1100 mm, clear width, gate is required. 
Any gate is to open with out special knowledge.  

The addresses for both residences are to be visible from Longhill Rd. 

6.5 Public Health Inspector 

As the Property is serviced by an existing onsite wastewater system, we will require confirmation 
from an Authorized Person, pursuant to the B.C. Sewerage System Regulation, that the increased 
use of the wastewater system associated with the addition will not cause or contribute to a 
health hazard. Onsite wastewater systems are designed for specific daily wastewater flows, and 
an increase in this flow beyond their designed capacity can lead to premature failure.  

Please note that the community water system (GEID) indicated for connection to this proposed 
development does not meet the 43210 Drinking Water Objectives as previously provided, and is 

111



Z11-0051 – Page 5 

 
 

currently or frequently on a Water Quality Advisory. As per Section 17(2) of the Public Health Act 
Transitional Regulation (BC Reg. 51/2009 amended to 296/2010), the landlord must supply safe 
and potable water.  

As the proposal will allow for the creation of a secondary suite, we support this application from 
a healthy built environment perspective. Secondary suites are important for providing increased 
housing density and availability at all price points, especially in areas that are generally less 
dense, or have low vacancy rates. 

6.6 Irrigation District (GEID) 

See letter from the Glenmore-Ellison Improvement District, dated July 20, 2011. 

6.7 Shaw Cable 

Owner/developer to supply & install underground conduit system unless new house and carriage 
homes to be serviced aerial. 

7.0 Application Chronology   

Date of Application Received: June 17, 2011 
 
Several family-related issues and a major house fire are responsible for the lengthy delay in this 
application. 
 
Outstanding Information Received: May 28, 2013 
 

Report prepared by: 

     
James Moore, Land Use Planner  
 
 

Reviewed by:    Danielle Noble, Urban Land Use Manager 
 

Approved for Inclusion:  Doug Gilchrist, General Manager of Community Sustainability 
 

Attachments:   

Subject Property Map 
Site Plan 
Conceptual Elevations 
Context/Site Photos 
Letter from Glenmore-Ellison Improvement District, dated July 20, 2011 
Development Engineering Memorandum, dated June 8, 2011 

112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120


	Agenda
	3.1 Z13-0007_Council.docx
	Back to Agenda

	3.1 z13-0007 attachments.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	3.1 Z13-0007_Council_Supplemental.docx
	Back to Agenda

	3.1 z13-0007 Supplemental attachments.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	3.2 Z13-0018_Council.docx
	Back to Agenda

	3.2 z13-0018 attachments.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	3.3 Z11-0051 JM Council.docx
	Back to Agenda

	3.3 z11-0051 attachments.pdf
	Back to Agenda


